SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 9, 2014
9:33 a.m

9: 33: 45 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:33 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

M chael Hanl ey, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and

Early Development; Gey Mtchell, Assistant Conm ssioner,
Department of Labor and W rkforce Developnent; Angela
Rodel |, Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Revenue; Senator John
Coghi I I .
SUVMVARY

SB 119 BUDGET: CAPI TAL
SB 119 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

CSHB 278(FIN) am
EDUCATI ON:  FUNDI NG TAX CREDI TS/ PROGRAMS

CSHB 278(FI Ny am was HEARD and HELD in commttee
for further consideration.



#hb278
CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 278(FIN) am

"An Act increasing the base student allocation used in
the formula for state funding of public education;
relating to the exenption from jury service for
certain teachers; relating to the powers of the
Depar t ment of Education and Early Devel opnent;
relating to high school course credit earned through
assessnment; relating to school performance reports;
relating to assessnents; establishing a public school
and school district grading system relating to
charter schools and student transportation; relating
to residential school applications; relating to tenure
of public school teachers; relating to unenploynent
contributions for the Al aska technical and vocationa
education program relating to earning high school
credit for conpletion of vocational education courses
offered by institutions receiving technical and
vocational education program funding; relating to
schools operated by a federal agency; relating to a
grant for school districts; relating to education tax

credits; establishing an optional muni ci pal t ax
exenption for privately owned real property rented or
| eased for wuse as a charter school; requiring the

Departnment of Administration to provide a proposal for
a salary and benefits schedule for school districts;
maki ng conform ng anendnents; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:35: 21 AM

M CHAEL HANLEY, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT, spoke to a sectional analysis (copy on
file) of the bill and related that certain conponents of
the legislation were specific to the Departnent of Labor
and Workforce Developnent (DOL) and the Departnent of
Revenue (DOR). He stated that Section 1 of the bill
consi sted of clean-up | anguage and that it allowed for jury
service exenptions for certain teachers in |ow perform ng
school s.

Co-Chair Kelly requested that Comm ssioner Hanley skip over
conf orm ng-| anguage sections of the bill and speak to the
sectional portions that were the neat of the legislation
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey responded in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough inquired which sectional analysis was
being presented. Co-Chair Kelly noted that the sectional
analysis in his packet was different.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough requested a brief at ease.

9:37:12 AM
AT EASE

9: 38: 05 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Kelly stated that the docunment that the conmttee
woul d be working with was notated in the |ower right-hand
corner and was prepared by M Hernman on 4/8/14; it was in
| andscape fornmat.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to speak to the sectional
analysis of the bill and related that Section 2 required
school districts to allow high school students to prove
their proficiency and gain credit by testing out of a

course; the <current |anguage in the bill allowed for
testing out of any subject. He explained that the governor
had originally had language in the bill that required
districts to have assessnments in the core areas of math,
| anguage arts, sci ence, soci al st udi es, and world
| anguages. He offered that sone subjects that were
experiential in nature did not I|end thenselves to an

assessnment. He stated that Section 4 of the bill prohibited
the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)
fromentering into a contract that would cede its authority
over its standards and assessnents. He explained that there
had been a perception that the departnment had given
sonething away when it had joined the Smarter Bal anced
Assessnent Consortium and that the |anguage in Section 4
restricted DEED from giving up its autonony and authority
over its standards.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to speak to a sectional

analysis of the bill and related that Section 5 was a
report to DEED from school districts and added another
conponent to the information that was garnered from schoo

districts; the report included information for students who
have parents in the active mlitary. He reported that
Section 6 on page 5 established a new accountability system
for Alaska's schools. He explained that as a result of the
waver received fromthe No Child Left Behind Act, there had

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/09/14 9:33 A M



been a new accountability system inplenmented to get away
from the adequate yearly progress (AYP) that was no |onger
adequate or an accurate neasurenent of schools; DEED had
noved to the Alaska School Performance Index (ASBlI) and
used a 5-star rating system He stated the other night, the
House added | anguage to the bill that would require DEED to
grade its schools on an A though F basis; Section 8
established the definitions of what that A through F
criteria would be. He stated that Section 9 of the bill

added integrity to the local process of applying for a new
charter school. He explained that charter schools were
operated within school districts and needed to go to the
| ocal school board; |anguage had been added in Section 9
that specified that the answer from that school board
needed to be in witing and be based on findings of fact
and conclusions of law Section 9 also allowed for appea

to conm ssioner of DEED if there was a denial from a schoo

boar d.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address a sectiona

analysis of the bill and related that Section 10 all owed
the comm ssioner of DEED to review a charter school's
appeal on the findings of fact and conclusion of law, the
conmmi ssioner could remand the decision back for further
consi deration, suggest an approval to the state board, or
agree with the denial. He added that a reconsideration of
t he appeal needed to be conducted within 90 days. He stated
that Section 11 of the bill continued to focus on equity
for charter schools and spoke to charter schools having the
first right of refusal to | ease space fromthe district in
whi ch they reside; the section also allowed charter schools
to negotiate a |ease agreenment for true operational costs.
He explained that a charter-school budget was defined and
shall not be |ess than the anpbunt generated by the students
enrolled in that charter school. He recalled that David
Teal, who was the director of the Legislative Finance
Di vision, had spoken the previous day to the anpunt that
was generated by students, which included things |ike the
base student allocation (BSA), the geographic-cost factor

the speci al education conponent, and the vocationa

technol ogy education; Section 12 specified that the budget
for a charter school could not be less than the anount that
its students generate in that formula mnus the
adm nistrative fee that the district could retain for the
work that it did on behalf of a charter school. He added
that Section 12 I|imted the admnistrative fee to 4
percent .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address the sectional

analysis and related that Section 13 was new and was added
in the House Finance Conmittee; the section allowed for
charter schools that were starting out to apply for start-
up funding in the amunt of $500 per student that was
enrolled in the charter school. He explained that the
start-up noney was a one-tine funding source for start-up
costs. He stated that Section 15 was simlar to the
| anguage in Section 4 of the bill that prevented DEED from
giving up its authority with its assessnments and standards;
Section 15 prevented DEED from spending any noney on the
i npl enentation of the commobn-core standards. He explained
that common-core standards were devel oped by the Nationa

Governors Association and the Council of Chief State Schoo

Oficers and noted that 46 states have adopted the
standards. He pointed out that Alaska had referenced the
common-core standards, but that it had its own set of
standards that were conparable and equal in rigor.

9:44: 47 AM

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address the sectional

analysis. He explained that the State Board of Education
provi ded an annual report to legislature that was typically
presented to both the House and Senate Education Comittees
and that Section 16 added another conponent to the report
that included recommendations to the |egislature around
educational spending and efficiencies. He observed that new
a reporting conponent was added in the House side and
opined that the |anguage seened a little outside of the
statutory purview of the State Board of Education. He
offered that board was a policy entity nore than a fisca

board and thought that the idea that it would reconmend
nmet hods of spending to the legislature seened to be beyond
its purview, regardless, the idea was that the board would
at least cone to the legislature with recomendations on
education. He stated that Section 17 was created for
recogni zing some equity in funding for charter schools and
poi nted out that transportation was a separate fornula that
was al so generated by students. He explained that districts
received funding for transportation based on its number of
students and that Section 17 designated that a charter
school had to have a mnimal Ilevel of funding for
transportation along routes that it currently served. He
directed the commttee's attention to line 7 on page 11 of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/09/14 9:33 A M



the bill and quoted the mninmmlevel of responsibility for
school districts to provide for transportation:

at a mninmum provide transportation services for
students enrolled in the charter school on a space
avai lable basis along the regular routes that the
students attending schools in an attendance area in
the district are transported

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address a sectiona
analysis of the bill. He related that the intent behind
Section 17 was that charter-school students generated
funding for the school and that they should also receive
servi ces, including transportation. He reported that
Section 18 included the state's boarding schools like M.
Edgeconbe in the requirenment to provide opportunities for
students to test out of the courses that previously had
been spoken to at the beginning of the neeting. He stated
that in order for a district to apply to open a residential
school, it needed to do so during an open-application
period. He explained that the conm ssioner of DEED could
currently open an application as deened appropriate and
recalled that he opened one the prior year; he did not
think that any open-application periods had been opened
prior to that by a comm ssioner. Section 19 specified that
the application period shall be opened annually, but did
not require the comm ssioner to approve new schools. He
t hought that the opportunity should be there for schools
and districts to apply for residential schools. He noted
that one thing that was m ssing from Section 19, which that
had been in governor's original bill, was the increase in
boardi ng stipends; this conponent was currently a part of
SB 113. He noted that SB 113 had been considered by the
| egi sl ature the previous year and that the |egislature had
i ncreased the funding for boarding stipends, but not to the
extent that was requested in the bill. He stated that the
nunbers were the same in the current year and that the idea
behind increasing the stipends was to conme close the actual
cost of housing students in the residential schools.

9:48: 28 AM

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address a sectiona
analysis of the bill. He spoke to Sections 20, 21, and 22
and pointed out they were BSA conponents. He stated that
the governor had put in $85 in order to get discussion
started regarding increasing the BSA. He stated that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/09/14 9:33 A M



House had increased the $85 to $185 and had kept the
ampunts of $58 and $58 in subsequent years that the
governor had recommended. He noted that at the end of the
bill, the House had also included $30 mllion as one-tine
funding that would be distributed using the fornmula. He
related for conparison to the $30 mllion that providing a
$185 BSA represented about a $46 million cost. He stated
that Section 23 discussed tenure for teachers in Al aska and
moved the tenure period from 3 years to 5 years. He
observed that the change in tenure was added in the house,
but that he was unsure how it would inprove scores or the
education system however, it was determ ned that holding
off on tenure for an additional 2 years would be a better
route. He observed that Section 24 allowed smaller
communities that had less than 5,500 people to provide
tenure for their teachers in 2 years less than the
standard. He explained that if the current tenure in the
bill stayed at 5 vyears, Section 24 would allow these
smal l er communities to offer tenure at 3 years.

GREY M TCHELL, ASSISTANT COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, spoke to the sectional analysis

of the bill and directed the committee's attention to
Section 25 and in particular to page 14, lines 15 through
31 of bill; the main change was |ocated on |ine 17 and

extended the Technical and Vocational Education Program
(TVEP) through June 30 of 2017. He explained that the
governor's version of the bill had originally established a
sunset state of 2024 and that the admnistration would
prefer that sunset date to allow the regional training
centers nore stability to develop training prograns in
light of large projects on the horizon; additionally, it
would allow them to nore effectively neet industry needs.

He spoke to Section 26 and in particular to page 15, |lines
1 through 28, which added performance requirenments for TVEP
recipients to establish and docunent duel credit

articulation agreenents with school districts to allow for
hi gh school students to get school credit for technical and
vocational training.

9:51:45 AM
AT EASE

9:52: 34 AM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/09/14 9:33 A M



M. Mtchell continued to speak to a sectional analysis of

the bill and related that Section 26 also renoved forner
Sections 4 and 5 from the bill; Sections 4 and 5 of the
previous version of the bill had dealt with student and

enpl oyer related satisfaction related to the training. He
concluded that Sections 4 and 5 had been renoved because
they were subjective neasures and were not viewed in the
sane categories as the other performance neasures;
paragraph 6 was added to Section 26 to allow DOL to coll ect
per f or mance and fi nanci al i nformation or devel op
regul ati ons to col | ect per f or mance and financi al
information from TVEP participants. He spoke to Section 27
and in particular to lines 29 through 31 on page 15 and
lines 1 through 4 on page 16. He stated that Section 27 was
anended to require institutions receiving TVEP funding to
establish and maintain at |east one articulation agreenent
for duel credit for high school students who were taking a
vocational education course; furthernore, it allowed the
DOL to establish a penalty of 20 percent of the TVEP
funding in the followng year if a participant did not
conply with the performance or reporting requirenments. He
directed the conmttee's attention to Section 28 on page 16
and in particular to lines 5 through 12; this section
established the definitions for what an articulation
agreenents and duel credits were.

9:54: 53 AM

ANGELA  RODELL, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

addressed a sectional analysis of the bill and rel ated that
Section 29 gave nunicipalities the expressed authority if
they chose to exenpt property used for charter schools from
their local property tax. She stated that Sections 30-41
all related to tax credits that were offered for donations
and noted that the tax credits were replicated based on the
individual tax that the credit was allowed to be applied
to; sonme sections applied to the corporate inconme tax, the
fisheries tax, the fisheries resource landing tax, and the
mning tax, which was why the sane |anguage was replicated
over the course of Sections 30 through 41. She stated that
Section 30 had originally been for a tax credit for
instruction research and educational support for the
University of Alaska, as well as two and four year
col l eges; this had been extended to al so include public and
private non-profit elenentary and secondary schools. She
reported that the ability of a donation for an
intercol |l egiate sports tournanment had been renoved from the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/09/14 9:33 A M



bill as an eligible qualifier for the tax credit. She
continued to speak to Section 30 and related that funding
for schol arshi ps had been added for the cost of duel-credit
courses, tuition and text books, registration, on-canpus
room and board, transportation costs, and other program
costs. She stated that the construction of residential
housi ng, childhood early |earning and devel opment prograns
that were provided by non-profit corporations, as well as
sci ence, technology, engineering, and math prograns that
were provided by a non-profit or a school district were all
added as &eligible uses for the tax-credit donations;
donations to any of those prograns throughout the state
would qualify for a tax credit under the corporate incone
tax, the state's fisheries tax, fishery resource |anding
tax, and the m ning tax.

9:57:30 AM

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey clarified t hat t he resi denti al
facilities were for the state's proved residential schools
and a tax credit would be provided because there was no
other way to fund the schools.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to speak to the sectional
analysis of the bill and noted that Section 42 repealed a
statute that was noticed by the House; the statute was no
longer in effect and nostly spoke to the Bureau of |Indian
Affairs' schools and the absorption of those schoo

districts. He stated that Section 43 renpved a sunset for a
provision that allowed Alaska to apply for federal grants
for starting up charter schools; Alaska had received sone
of those grants about six or seven years prior, but had not
received any recently. Section 43 allowed the state to
continue to at |east have the opportunity to apply for
those federal grants as they becane available. He stated
that Section 44 contained the applicability |anguage
related to the teacher-tenure provisions and that Section
47 required the Departnment of Admnistration (DOA) to
submt a witten report to the legislature on January 1 of
2016 in regards to inplenenting a state-wide salary and
benefits service for school districts. He stated that
Section 48 contained the $30 mllion in one-time funding
that was added by the House and woul d be distributed by the
adj usted average daily nenbership; the remaining sections
contai ned effective dates.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Co-Chair Kelly requested that Comm ssioner Hanley pretend
that there were parents in the room and explain how the
bill rmade education better for Al askans. Conmm ssioner
Hanley replied that the legislation did several things; one
was that it included additional funding for the state's
schools and districts that actually went to the schools and
districts as opposed to things that didn't reach the
schools. He explained that the bill also renoved a few
barriers and added new opportunities for students. He spoke
about the opportunity to test out of a class He recalled
previous testinony that sone of the state's charter schools
were struggling with funding and finding |eases; the bil

renoved sonme of the barriers on charter schools, created
equity, clarified what funding generated by students really
was, and provided opportunities for charter-school students
to have transportation |like other students in the district.

He noted that the bill also provided incentives for
Al aska's public entities to join wth the state in
i ncreasing educati onal opportunities. He stated that

Al aska's residential schools were proven nodels that had
been very effective for students in rural and urban Al aska;

the bill provided an annual opportunity for school
districts to open new residential schools. He hoped that
eventually, the bill would support residential schools to a

greater extent.

10: 01: 57 AM

Senator Hoffman directed the commttee's attention to
Section 47, which required DOA to conduct a statew de
salary and benefit report by January 1 of 2016. He inquired
if the study would include a cost of |I|iving adjustnent
(CALA) el ement as it related to rural t eachers.
Commi ssioner Hanley replied that the conponent was added in
the House and that he would have to check regarding the
intent on how DOA would conduct the report. He added that
the section in question had not been part of the governor's
original bill and was only added recently.

Senat or Hof fman thought that if the section did not contain
a COLA adjustnent for rural teachers, it would be difficult
to hire teachers in those areas. He observed that rural
districts continued to have problens regarding hiring and
that one of the ways that they were able to hire conpetent
teachers was to have a different salary structure than
ur ban school s.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Vice-Chair Fairclough comrented that the commttee had
al ready gone through a process to evaluate benefits other
than salary for school districts in a survey that was
conducted for an insurance pooling issue. She wanted to
make sure that as the Senate reviewed the survey, the
commttee did not ask for duplicate information or
sonmething that was already collected. She wondered what the
adm nistration would do differently in acquiring the data
on the health and benefit side of the equation.

10: 04: 16 AM

Senator Hof fman wondered if Conmi ssioner Hanley was ready
to give a conparison between what |evel of funding the
Senate had provided in the operating budget versus the
| evel of funding that the House provided in HB 278.
Comm ssi oner Hanley responded that he could give a genera
conparison of the 2 levels. He reported that in the House,
the $185 in the BSA translated to about $46 mllion and
that including the $30 mllion appropriation, the House had
provi ded about $75 million to $76 million; part of that was
a one-time allocation, while part was in the BSA. He stated
that the Senate had added a $100 million, which translated
to about a $400 increase to the BSA and that House's
funding level translated to about $300 BSA increase. He
noted that another difference was that the Senate had al
of the funding as a one-tinme appropriation.

10: 05: 36 AM
AT EASE

10: 07: 28 AM
RECONVNED

10: 07:41 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough noted that there had been a question
about broadband before the AT EASE and stated that the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Commttee had been working
with Senator A son's office on broadband and the necessity
of taking a closer look at how the state's schools were
setup in their ability to communicate electronically. She
noted that there was a survey done on schools and that the
conmttee was trying to ascertain what those actua
hardware positions were that was specific to individual
districts, what options and abilities there were to connect
t hose areas, and what the required level would be to carry

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/09/14 9:33 A M



data. She noted that the issue on broadband for schools was
unresolved for the Senate and that she did not think it
would be resolved in the current session. She understood
that broadband survey would not be conpleted until the
foll ow ng session.

Co-Chair Kelly requested Commi ssioner Hanley to comrent on
the E-Rate legislation and thought it should be discussed
along with broadband. Comm ssioner Hanley stated that he
could give a high level overview, but that it had been
several days since he had reviewed the bill. He stated that
the idea behind the E-Rate bill was sinply to bring all of
the state's schools up to a mnimm level of 10 negabits
per second of bandwi dth; additionally, it would increase
the bandwidth 10 percent for those schools that were
already at the mnimumlevel. He stated that the bill would
set a floor for expectations of broadband across the state.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if the fiscal note on the E-Rate
bill was around $13 million. Conmm ssioner Hanley responded
that it was sonewhere in that area, but that it increased
in the out-years.

10: 09: 46 AM

Senator O son noted that the bill converted DEED from an A
through F system for grading its schools as opposed to the
star system and inquired what the reason was for that
change. Comnmi ssioner Hanley replied that DEED had behaved
very intentionally when it received its waiver to nove to a
star system he related that the star systemwas simlar to
rating system for a hotel and represented a place for
i nprovenent. He recalled that going to the star system was
a hugely public process and that there had been a |ot
feedback from people across the state. He stated that the A
through F system had been introduced in the House, but
opined that an F still denoted failing. He was unsure how
the A through F system would notivate students, particul ar
in small rural areas, where there were no other schools in
town; he added that a student could not really directly
impact a school's score. He opined that the A through F
system seened to have detrinental consequences rather than
provi di ng notivation. He understood that the sponsor of the
amendnment in the House believed that having an A through F
system would notivate students in schools, as well as
parents.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Senator O son surm sed that Conm ssioner Hanley was not in
favor of |anguage that changed DEED to the A through F
system Comm ssioner Hanley responded in the affirmative
and explained that the departnent had been acting
intentionally when it had gone to the star system

10:11: 50 AM

Senator O son noted that Section 24 on page 14 discussed
rural school districts and requested clarification on what
the definition of a small borough was. He noted that he had
two boroughs in his Senate district that had popul ations
that may or nmay not go above the threshold of 5,500 people.
Comm ssi oner Hanley understood that any borough that had
| ess than 5,500 people was considered small; he did not see
any other criteria offered and did not have any further
insight into the subject.

Senator A son surmsed that Conmm ssioner Hanley was not
necessarily in favor of that distinction of what a small
bor ough was. Conmm ssi oner Hanl ey understood that the intent
behind having a shorter tenure for rural Alaska was to
incentivize teachers to work in those areas, but was unsure
if that was the intent of tenure. He stated that tenure was
not designed as an incentive, but that it could be if used
in that way. He noted that tenure was designed to give
adm ni strators and teachers an opportunity to prove their
effectiveness before being provided wth additional
security in their job.

Senat or O son expressed concern about how the bill's tenure
change mght affect his district. He noted that if an
educator went from the Nome public-school system which was
a single site school district, as opposed to the Bering
Strait School District and then noved the Northwest Artic
Borough School District, it would be unclear what exactly
applied regarding tenure. Conmm ssioner Hanley responded
that the different districts in question could potentially
have different tenure systens under the bill.

Senator O son pointed to Section 47 on page 28, lines 10
through 15. He noted that it appeared that the state was
attenpting to establish a salary schedule in the section,
but observed that the enployees being affected were not
state enpl oyees but were essentially enployed by the school
district. He noted that salaries and retirement were
inportant to people and wondered if that those aspects

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/09/14 9:33 A M



should be left up to districts in collective bargaining
rat her than being mandated in statute. Comm ssioner Hanl ey
responded that the section did renove the authority to set
salaries for teachers at the local |evel and noved that
authority to the state level. He did not believe that the
intent was to make the teachers state enployees, but to
determine their salaries at the state level. He thought
that that Senator O son was correct that the intent of that
particular section was to look at a statew de-salary
schedul e.

10: 15: 32 AM

Senator O son interpreted that DEED was not in favor of the
change and that it wanted to continue with local control
for the schools. Conm ssioner Hanley responded that the
departnent was relatively neutral on the change and that it
had not really seen what it would like yet; the change
represented a plan to provide a recommendation to the
| egi sl ature.

Co-Chair Kelly thought that one of the vexing things about
education costs in Alaska was that nost people were not
satisfied with the education product that the state was
getting. He added that Al aska had sonme great schools,
students, and prograns, but that, in general, people did
not think that the state was getting the product it wanted
from its education system He expressed frustration that
superintendents or other school district people conplained
about rising costs, but thought that there had not been a
lot of effort by the school districts to control |[|abor
costs. He noted that sone costs could not be controlled,
but that there was sone ability to have control over | abor
costs; the reason for the state-wide salary structure was
because the districts did not, in general, seemto want to
control those costs.

Senator Dunleavy inquired what the genesis of the b5-star
rating system had been. Comm ssioner Hanley replied that
one of the requirenents for the waiver was that DEED needed
to put in a separate accountability system He explained
t hat if AYP was scrapped, sonething needed to Dbe
i npl enented to neasure schools and school districts wth;
this was what had driven DEED to create a different system

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy inquired what the goal of the star rating
system was and how it would manifest itself in the state.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the waiver was totally
optional and that there was no conpulsion to get one;
however, if the state had stayed with AYP under a conponent
of the No Child Left Behind Act, about 98 percent of the
state's schools would have been deened as failing. He
reported that if DEED has stayed with AYP, it would have
had to reach 100 percent efficiency in the current year and
that it would have to be inplenenting school inprovenent
plans and interacting wth schools as if there were
failing, even if a school mght have a 85 percent success
rate. He added that DEED felt l|ike the AYP was an erroneous
nmodel and that getting out from under it represented an
opportunity to build a better system He reported that he
was very happy with the Al aska School Performance |Index and
the new star rating system and expl ained that the feedback
from superintendents and principals had been good. He
offered that new system allowed school districts to have
greater control and ownership over their scores, which had
not happened with AYP or the No Child Left Behind Act and
expl ained that the prior system had not provided a way to
fix things within the system He added that the new rating
system also allowed DEED to provide resources to help the
1-star schools, which had been designated as a priority; it
al so provided the departnment with a chance to recognize
sonme of its b5-star schools for their good work. He thought
that the notivation for switching rating systens was the
need for an honest system that reflected how Al aska's
school s were doi ng.

10: 20: 19 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough thought that it was difficult when
Arerica was falling behind in the rankings in the world
education market. She knew that teachers were working hard
and had nmany new challenges in the classroom but pointed
out that Anmerica was losing ground in ternms of how its
students would conpete in the world market. She recalled
attending education conferences and trying to attend
educational neetings in an effort to understand the
perspective of what was happeni ng. She thought that she was
informed enough to know that sonme systens were exclusive
and sonme were inclusive and that America was taking on nore
than other than others it mght be conpared to. She was
trying to find footing in looking at Al aska' s system for
rural and urban students. She thought that Al aska was not

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/09/14 9:33 A M



facing that Anerica was |osing ground on education and that
that aspect had nothing to with Al aska. She wanted the
tools to identify why groups were gaining ground in front
of America on education and needed to know that Anmerica's

students could still conpete in a global nmarket. She noted
what the federal governnent setting for hurdles for Al askan
students pl ayed into how  Comm ssi oner Hanl ey was

responsible for setting a bar for Al askan students to
cross. She was wunsure if an A through F system was the
right way to go or whether the star system was; however,
she thought that if Alaska had F or failing schools, it
seened that it was inportant for the state to know that and
be able to act to change it. She acknow edged that she was
not a teacher and had not been a school adm nistrator and
t hat she |ooked to Conm ssioner Hanley to provide
| eadership in how Al aska's students conpeted. She thought
that maybe an F rating would nmake the state look a little
bit harder at an area than a star rating. She understood
concerns regarding how an F rating would help people in
smal | er communi ties, but wondered  what the state's
responsibility was if it was labeling a school as a 1-star
school when it really had an F rating.

Co-Chair Kelly did not think that the committee or any
| egi sl ator should be concerned about the self-esteem of a
comunity. He stated that a community needed to know if a
school was failing and should be outraged if that was the
case. He did not want to inplement a system that made
peopl e feel better about their school failing. He thought
that a lot of people in the commttee room were forner
teachers or admnistrators. He noted that self-esteem
worked on children and that the state should be concerned
about it; however, adults who were supposed to do their
j obs were being discussed. He thought that if a school was
failing and the adults who were required to make it succeed
were failing, he wanted people to know about it;
furthernore, a community should be outraged if they have a
failing school and demand a better one. Conm ssioner Hanley
agreed and thought that the state had not been honest wth
its kids in the past; He thought that the state needed to
be honest with its students. He recalled that students had
graduated high school, but had not been ready for the
university and needed to take renedial classes. He noted
that sone students had graduated high school in Al aska, but
had not ready for careers or had not been able to pass the
witten examto get into the mlitary. He did not have any
desire to continue the past and noted that the Al aska

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/09/14 9:33 A M



needed to be honest with its communities, schools, and
kids. He stated that DEED believed that the system that was
in place, whether it was called a star or an F, was a way
to look at deficiencies, strengths, and how to fix
problens. He reported that DEED focused and prioritized 1-
star schools and that the departnent would help those
schools fix those deficits; the star system would allow the
departnment to put responsibilities on schools to address
deficits and was not hiding anything. He did not know that
designating a school as a failure added to the conversation
in a positive way and thought that the goal was honesty and
addressi ng the current needs.

Comm ssioner Hanley responded to Co-Chair Kelly's coments
and expressed concerns that the A through F system as it
was listed in the bill was strictly based on progress. He
wondered how an A through F system would affect schools
that were at the 99th percentile and how these high-
achieving schools would get adequate progress. He noted
that a 99th percentile schools would get 5-stars in the
current system but could receive an F in the other system
because it did not make enough progress; he was unsure how
much progress could be achieved by a school that was
already at the 99th percentile. He was unsure about the
definitions of the A through F system but stated that
DEED s intent was to address needs in conmunities and not
to try and hide them anynore.

10: 27: 41 AM

Co-Chair Kelly expressed appreciation that Comm ssioner
Hanl ey had pointed out a nuance in the A through F system
and thought that the comm ssioner's explanation had been a
reasonabl e one.

Senator Bishop noted that the discussion was using genera

statenents regarding what a failing school was versus a
passi ng school, but that there had been little discussion
about the kids and issues like bullying. He agreed that
adults could take an A, B, C, D, or F, but that it could
negatively affect sone children that were transferring from
one school to the next. He expressed strong feelings on the
issue. He recalled that the conm ssioner had stated that a
99t h percentile school could still be an F school under the
A through F system He recalled taking two 17-year-olds to
a school to register for an apprenticeship program and t hat
both kids had been stuck at a 3rd grade reading and math

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/09/14 9:33 A M



level. He stated that today, those two individuals were
journeymen operators nmaking $80,000 per year; he inquired
if they were considered fail ures.

Senator Dunleavy commented that there had been a |ot of
di scussion in the current year about school choice, nuch of
it housed in the private school concept. He wondered
whether a child could nove froma 1-star school to a 4 or 5
-star public school with the assistance of the state or
whet her they were destined to remain in that school wunti
it was fixed. Comm ssioner Hanley responded that there was
not currently a system where the state would pay for a
student to nove to another comunity to attend a different
school. He stated that in areas where there were nore than
one school, DEED was seeing nore and nore districts
providing totally open enrollnment in allowng students to
nmove around within the district; however, there was not
currently anything in place to support students noving from
a small comunity to a |l arge comunity.

10: 32: 00 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy thought that the state did have sonething
like that in place. He noted that M. Edgeconbe was
directly under DEED and inquired if the state paid for kids
to attend M. Edgeconbe. Commi ssioner Hanley responded in
the affirmati ve and added that it was a public school.

Senat or Dunl eavy noted that there were funds and a system
already in place that allowed children to go to M.

Edgeconbe who mght be in smaller conmmunities; he inquired
if this process could be reviewed to allow children from 1-
star or 2-star school to have first dibs at M. Edgeconbe,

anot her regional boarding school, or anywhere. He noted
that he was not trying to put the conm ssioner on the spot,

but wanted his thoughts on the issue of school choice
within the public school system He wondered if soneone
really had school choice if they had no assistance to go

Comm ssioner Hanley thought that it would be a valuable
thing to consider regarding the application process and
that the only school that the departnent had any authority
over in that regard was M. Edgeconbe; although the state
did have other residential schools, they were operated by
| ocal schools districts. He thought that adding criteria
that factored in where a student canme from could be a part
of the application process.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 04/09/14 9:33 A M



Co-Chair Meyer was interested in how the BSA the $30

mllion outside of cap, and how TRS was dealt with in the
bill. He noticed that the House had included testing out of
classes in the bill and expressed concern that in the case

of larger schools, testing out of hundreds of classes could
be very expensive. He inquired what Comm ssioner Hanley's
t houghts were on the issue. Conm ssioner Hanley responded
that testing out of classes had also been in the governor's
bill, but that the governor's version had |anguage added
that had specifically had in mnd that it could be a burden
for districts to have to develop an assessnent for every
subject. The part that had been renoved from the bill was
the specific |anguage around the courses; currently, the
bill stated that any subject could be tested out of. He
reported that DEED preferred that only the core areas of
mat h, |anguage arts, science, social studies, and world
| anguages be included for testing out.

10: 35: 18 AM

Co- Chair Meyer agreed and thought that allow ng for testing
out of the core courses would be achievable, but that it
woul d be expensive and cunbersone to do so for all of the
cour ses.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if the conmmttee had discussed
charter schools and how they were dealt wth in the
| egi sl ati on. Conm ssioner Hanley noted that charter schools
were addressed in Section 9 of the bill and that it
contained two conponents. He reported that one conponent
was the renoval of barrier and allow ng an appeal process;
the other conponent was to provide sonme equity for charter
schools. He explained that the integrity of the |Iocal
process allowed an appeal that required a district to say
no to new charter schools based on fact and concl usion;
furthernore, this needed to put into witing. He thought
that the new appeal system brought integrity to the process
and noted that it allowed for an appeal to cone to the
comm ssioner of DEED. He reported that if a comm ssioner
felt that a districts' decision was not based on fact and
law, they could send the decision to the state board for a
final review He added that there was also sone |anguage
that the governor had originally put in and sonme additions
regarding treating charter schools equitably and expl ained
that charter schools had a different structure than other
schools; they were run by an advisory policy conmttee that
consisted largely of parents. He reported that the in

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 04/09/14 9:33 A M



current |anguage of the bill, the funding for a charter
school could not be less than the funds generated by the
students in that school. He explained that the equity part
of the bill stated that the funds generated by students in
a charter school included the special education, vocational
and technical education conponents, but also required the
consi deration of transportation by the school district.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to address Co-Chair Meyer's
guestion and related that |anguage had been added to the
bill that allowed charter schools the first right-of-
refusal for |ease space. There was | anguage that allowed
muni cipalities to renove a private building that was being
| eased by charter schools from the tax rules; there was
also language that added a $500 per student grant to
charter schools for startup noney.

10: 38: 17 AM

Co-Chair Meyer inquired the $500 per student grant was in
the governor's bill or whether it had been added in the
House. Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the conponent was
added in the House Finance Comrttee. Co-Chair Meyer
inquired if it was something he supported. Comm ssioner
Hanl ey responded that the only negative part would be the
responsibility for the fiscal conponent, which he thought
was about $168,000 based on passed trends. He thought that
it was a way to help charter schools get on their feet and
woul d equate to about $75,000 to $100,000 depending on the
school ' s si ze.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if school districts were not
required to pass on money from the BSA to charter to
school s. Comm ssioner Hanley replied that was incorrect.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if schools districts were required
to pass on funding to charter schools that was appropriated
outside of the BSA. Conm ssioner Hanley that theoretically,
that was true. He stated that the idea was that the charter
schools were funded in the sane manner as other schools in
the district.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that there was a lot interest in
charter schools and that Comm ssioner Hanley thought that
the $500 per student grant was manageable from a fiscal
perspective. He inquired if there was a cap on charter
schools. Comm ssioner Hanley responded that there was no

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 04/09/14 9:33 A M



longer a cap. Co-Chair Meyer inquired if the cap was
removed. Conm ssioner Hanley replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Meyer inquired how the high school exit exam was

addressed in the bill. Conm ssioner Hanley replied that the
removal of high school exit exam had been taken out of the
governor's version of the bill, but that it had been the

focus of the adm nistration. He understood that HB 220 was
currently being considered by the Senate and that the bil
repealed the exit exam He did not believe that issue
needed to be addressed in HB 278, but that DEED felt
strongly that the time had cone to repeal the high school
exit exam

Co-Chair Meyer agreed with Commissioner Hanley and was
unsure if the SAT/ACT testing or WrkKeys was the right
mechani sm Comm ssioner Hanley commented that the SAT/ACT
was sinply added as a choice; currently, Alaska's 1lth
graders were required to take WrkKeys, which was an
assessnent that gave people an idea of how they would fair
in their career. He stated that the governor's intent in
addi ng ACT/ SAT testing was not to replace the exit exam
but to provide a choice for students; furthernore,
Wor kkeys, the ACT, and the SAT all qualified students for
t he Al aska Performance Schol arshi p.

10:42:14 AM

Co-Chair Meyer voiced frustration that the state was
picking up a lot nore of the share of the education
funding, but that it was not getting credit for it. He
recalled that 2 years prior, the legislature had changed
the mll rate from4.0 to 2.65, which neant that the state
was picking up a larger share of the funding, while the
muni ci palities were taking a smaller share. He thought that
the mll rate could be discussed, but that the change had
given cities extra noney to use for other purposes. He
noted that with school construction, the state funded 70
percent and that the nunicipalities picked up 30 percent if
they could pass the bond. He noted that it was troubl esone
that the state had no control over the bonding of
muni ci palities and that if one passed a school construction
bill, the state automatically funded 70 percent; he added
that he was not saying this was right or wong, but noted
that the state could not control or plan for this. He
inquired if Comm ssion Rodell had any thoughts on the
i ssue. Conmm ssioner Rodell thought that there were things

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 04/09/14 9:33 A M



that the state could do to the School Debt Reinbursenent
Program that would fulfill the goals and capital needs of
the school districts while still bringing the state nore
control over its match and debt costs. She recalled that
DOR had heard from conmunities that mght want to cash fund
sone of their capital costs instead of debt funding them
she thought that this was sonething that DOR m ght want to
respect, but that there was currently no nechanismin place
under school debt reinbursenent for a comunity to cash
fund some of its capital costs. She thought that DOR woul d
be receptive to looking at different ways to amend the
School Debt Rei nbursenment Program that allowed the state to
have nore control over its costs associated wth that
program w t hout inpacting the school districts' ability to
fund the capital needs that were required.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that he would like to work on the
issue further wth Conm ssioner Hanley and Conm ssioner
Rodel|. He observed that he had many other questions, but
yielded his tinme to other nenbers in the recognition that
there woul d nore hearings on the bill.

10: 45: 24 AM

Senator Hoffman recalled having several discussions wth
Comm ssioner Hanley regarding the quality of education in
rural Alaska and that he had the sane discussions wth
three or four of the previous conmm ssioners of DEED. He
stated that the school district that had been discussed
nost intensely was the Yupiit School District and noted
that DEED had taken oversight over that district. He
wondered how that oversight had inproved education in those
three communities, as well as how the |egislation would
help the district and other |ike communities provide a
better education to their students. Conm ssioner Hanley
responded that a little over a year prior, he had worked
with WIllie Kasayulie, Mke WIlians, and others on the
Yupiit School Board and had determned that having a
trustee there was not the best nethodol ogy; the trustee had
been renoved for over a year. He noted that DEED had
provi ded resources directly to the Yupiit School District
and that they had nmde sonme huge gains. He was really
excited about the direction that the district was going and
stated that the DEED had provided additionally funding and
that the district had requested for opportunities to
enpower its advisory commttees in each comunity and
enpower its teachers; DEED had paid for some of training

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 04/09/14 9:33 A M



for that. He thought that the Yupiit School District was on
an upward swing and that things had changed extensively
over the last year and a half. He thought that the bill did
not focus on rural or wurban schools, but that it would
raise all boats and would have an inpact statew de. He

concluded that the bill should benefit the Yupiit School
District.
10: 47: 55 AM

CSHB 278(FIN) am was HEARD and HELD in conmttee for
further consideration.

SB 119 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.
#

ADJ QURNVENT
10: 48: 02 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:48 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 04/09/14 9:33 A M



